
Page 1 of 18 

CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
CBJ Room 224 and 

               Via Zoom Meeting  
 

I. Mr. Ridgway called the July 20th meeting to order at 5:00pm in CBJ Room 224 and via 
zoom.  

 
II. Roll Call – The following members attended in CBJ Room 224 or via zoom, James 

Becker, Lacey Derr, Don Etheridge, Paul Grant, David Larkin, Matthew Leither, Annette 
Smith, Debbie Hart and Mark Ridgway. 

 
III. Approval of Agenda 
 

MOTION By MR. ETHERIDGE:  TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED AND ASK UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion passed with no objection 

 
IV. Public Participation on Non-Agenda Items  - None 
 
V. Approval of Wednesday, June 22nd, 2022 Operations/Planning Meetings Minutes 

Hearing no objection, the June 22nd meeting minutes were approved as presented. 
 

VI. Special Order of Business – Open Meetings Act Compliance.   
Mr. Ridgway said in the packet are emails that were exchanged outside a meeting and are 
now part of the minutes.     

 
VII. Unfinished Business - None  
 
VIII.  New Business  

 
1.  Proposed Change to 85.02.063 – Docks & Harbors Land Management Plan  
Mr. Uchytil showed a power point presentation on planning requirement included in the 
minutes.  The presentation was an overview of CBJ Plans, 2013 Comprehensive Plans 
[18 Individual Chapters, Comp Plan Layout, Policy 5.6, Standard Operating Procedures 
5.6, Development Guidelines 5.6, Implementing Action 5.6, Implementing Action 5.6 
continued, Policy 5.9, Policy 5.9 continued, Policy 5.14]; CBJ Land Management Plan 
[CBJ Land Atlas 2016, a page with parcel numbers and descriptions with retention 
status]; Long Range Waterfront Plan 2004 [Juneau Waterfront 2025 Concept Plan, Long 
Range Waterfront Plan, Subport];  Subport Vicinity Revitalization Plan [Subport Vicinity 
Revitalization 2003]; Waterfront Design Guidelines; Juneau Small Cruise ship 
Infrastructure Master Plan;  Blueprint Downtown area plan [Blueprint Downtown, 
Goals];  85.02.063 Land Management Plan 2004;  and, Options to address 85.02.063 
Deficiency.   



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 2 of 18 

 
Committee Questions 
Mr. Ridgway asked if all CBJ Docks & Harbors status is to retain ownership? 
 
Mr. Uchytil on the page in the presentation they are all to retain but he did not go over all 
the Docks & Harbors managed lands. 
 
Mr. Larkin pointed out on slide 13, goal #1 is to continue the land disposal program 
which systematically places CBJ land into private ownership.   
 
Ms. Hart asked if it was possible to have a site visit to all CBJ Docks & Harbors land 
ownership areas.  This would give eyes on the ground and a better view of what we are 
responsible for.   
 
Mr. Uchytil said we lease 45 parcels we could do a field trip but we would have to 
navigate the Open Meetings Act.   
 
Mr. Uchytil continued on with the presentation and pointed out that on slide 27 shows a 
land management plan that Docks & Harbors “shall” do and have it approved by the 
Assembly but we have never done one.  
 
Mr. Uchytil discussed the following options to address 85.02.063 deficiency–  

• Complete Docks & Harbors Land Management Plan 
Probably 1 year effort 
Outsource to contractor 

• Delete requirement for Docks & Harbors Land Management Plan 
Require Assembly approval 

• Amend 85.02.063 to leverage CBJ Land Management Plan 
Require Assembly approval 
Maintains intent of original 2004 language 

 
Ms. Derr asked if staff has talked to the zoning people about the Hansen & Gress 
property issues? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said this may be addressed at a later time in the meeting. 
 
Mr. Grant understands from the Hansen & Gress proposal their issues could be addressed 
with some kind of variance.  CDD decided that they will not grant a variance if they cross 
property lines which is their mandate and he said he believes Docks & Harbors should 
not dispose of tidelands except under exceptional circumstance that he does not believe 
has been met.  How do we decide who is right on two equal branches of government? 
 
Mr. Ridgway said if we were to adopt these changes for the land management plan, how 
would it change the Hansen & Gress issue? 
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 3 of 18 

Mr. Uchytil said his preference is to talk about the Hansen & Gress separate from the 
Land Management Plan changes.   
 
Mr. Brown said the specific plan that applies to the Docks & Harbors Board 85.02.063 
section (a) says after the Board deliberation the Board will forward to the Planning 
Commission and Assembly for adoption.  Section (b) says that process will be guided by 
four principles with one of which is not in favor of sale of tidelands and recommends 
leasing for only water related uses.  However, he does not believe the Board can consider 
to be under a mandate to lease only for those water related or dependent purposes and not 
ever to sell.  The statute says that shall be considered when a plan is adopted.  CBJ Law 
is ready to help implement what the Board decides from the three options to address the 
deficiency in 85.02.063. 
 
Mr. Ridgway asked if staff was recommending the third option which is to amend 
85.02.063.  He asked Mr. Uchytil how the Land Management Plan and the Long Range 
Waterfront plans are connected?  If the Board decided on option three, how would it help 
in the decision for the Hansen & Gress property? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said the words put into this draft is to say we will be guided by the CBJ Land 
Management Plan.  There are common themes that as an organization we can choose to 
do. This body has a great deal of discretion to make community calls from the plans 
already out there.   
 
Ms. Hart said in light of the different plans and the cautions said tonight, is there a feeling 
we need to capture our planning efforts under the new vision, or is it already captured and 
we just need to give approval for the different plans.    
 
Mr. Uchytil commented that we have several different plans and have been successful in 
managing properties.  We are still able to operate without having a Land Master Plan but 
someone has determined all these plans were necessary at some point.  
 
Mr. Brown said a big part of having plans is so people do not leave it to “hope” that all 
things will turn our beneficially.  He said looking at option one it would take over 1 year 
and over $10,000 in consultant fees.  Having the Docks & Harbor management plan 
would inform the other plans what the Board wants to have happen and that would be a 
good reason to have option one.  The code, transferred to the Docks & Harbors Board 
through the Port Director, empowers the Board to make the decisions under 53.09.200 
which is the land disposal section that applies to everything except Docks & Harbors 
lands. One of the provisions is that land should not really be sold unless it is in a land 
management plan.  He said he would take the recommendation of the Port Director to 
alter an existing plan for all the Docks & Harbors properties and that might be a lot 
quicker and more efficient.   
Mr. Ridgway commented that the Board is to make decisions based on a plan but we do 
not have a plan.  He said he heard staff say we have done well without a plan.  With the 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 4 of 18 

fact we can operate without a plan, why would we need to do any of the three option put 
before us? 
 
Mr. Brown said because the “shall” in 85.02.063 mandates the Board to do the Land 
Management Plan.  Docks & Harbors has managed land well since this code and it has 
proven that not having a Land Management Plan is not fatal to operating.  If this code is 
going to be disobeyed he would recommend changing it.  Another thing problematic is 
the other plans do not include Docks & Harbors lands and that is a glaring emission.  It is 
not good to have a code provision that you are ignoring.  
 
Ms. Derr asked if we were to do our own Land Management Plan, how often would it be 
required to be updated?  
 
Mr. Brown said it would need to be updated every five years or sooner if a major event 
happened. The five year requirement could also be amended to 10 years. 
 
Mr. Grant commented that the third option is the one he would like to pursue.  He looks 
at 85.02.063 as guidance to the Board.  He does not think Docks & Harbors needs our 
own plan.  He believes 85.02.063 has the principles that point us in the right direction.   
 
 Mr. Ridgway asked if Docks & Harbors adopts the 85.02.063 Land Management Plan, 
and someone comes before the Board and they have a building setting in the middle of 
property lines, and the Board is asked to sell land to make the private owner land whole,  
as a Board member, where would I seek guidance to make the right decision.  Would it 
be from 85.02.063 and how would I utilize it to make an effective decision. 
 
Mr. Brown said if there was a Land Management Plan under the existing 85.02.063 then 
that parcel of property would have been addressed and there would have been a 
recommendation to do something.  It would be either the City buy the land and lease the 
entire parcel to the land owner or sell the CBJ tidelands to the land owner with 
restrictions for the water dependent or water related addressed.   At this point, when the 
Board makes a decision, you are not anymore beholden to 85.02.063 as you are to the full 
Land Management Plan.  This is a plan for a plan.  Working with a plan already in place 
and altering to the Docks & Harbors wants is in the best interest of Docks & Harbors 
because they are already in place and been vetted.  Using 85.02.063 is just one possible 
source for using a plan already in place.   
 
Public Comment - None 
 
Committee Discussion/Action 
 
Mr. Brown said there could be a motion tonight instructing the Port Director to work with 
CBJ Law to draft an ordinance for option three.   
Mr. Grant suggested to set this aside for tonight because there is a lot of word smithing 
that needs to happen and to have staff and Mr. Brown do that.  



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 5 of 18 

 
Ms. Smith asked by changing how we do things now, will it affect the current request for 
the Hansen & Gress issue? 
 
Mr. Brown said no.  The Board will have to make an answer without the benefit of the 
Land Management Plan. What is in 85.02.063 is something good to look at but the 
decision will need to be made without that being implemented. 
 
Mr. Larkin said a comment on Mr. Grant’s comment is that he disagrees that Docks & 
Harbors should not sell property. With the word “should” that is more of a 
recommendation and not a directive.  There are other places that it talks about that Docks 
& Harbors administers and disposes of land.  Disposal is in there a few times and also in 
the slides from tonight from goal one was to dispose of some land back to private use.  
There was another thing that said all public lands need to be at the benefit of the people.  
The Board should lean toward keeping property but there may be times to release it to 
private use. 
 
Mr. Etheridge said one of the things pushed by the Board and Assembly has been picking 
up tidelands.  There was even a fund created at one time to buy any available tidelands.  
He said he has a hard time going to the Assembly and recommending the sale of this 
property but trying to purchase a piece of property not even a mile away.   
 
Mr. Ridgway said Docks & Harbors has missions to serve or ideas to support and we are 
also a leasing agency and we have to manage the goals set up before us.   
 
Ms. Hart asked what our options are instead of selling this can we lease it or create an 
easement.   
 
Mr. Ridgway commented the item on the agenda is about establishing a land management 
plan. 
 
Mr. Brown said at this point the Board needs to decide on the three options to address the 
deficiency in 85.02.063.  As far as other options for Hansen & Gress, he believes Hansen 
& Gress has to own the entire area where their building sits to do the improvements they 
want to do.  CBJ can purchase their parcel and lease back the entire piece or they can 
purchase the CBJ parcel but they have to have the whole building area as one.    
 
Mr. Becker requested looking at option three and they can make it work.      
 
MOTION By MS DERR:  MOVE TO FORWARD 85.02.063 TO THE FULL 
BOARD TO BEGIN REVIEWING AMENDMENT TO ADOPT A 
MANAGEMENT PLAN AND ASK UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Mr. Grant Objected.  He believes there needs to be clarity on what plan is being 
adopted and what we are voting on.  



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 6 of 18 

 
Ms. Derr said the motion was to move this forward to the full Board so we can start 
wordsmithing this.  We are not looking to delete it but amend it.  
 
Mr. Larkin said his recommendation on the motion would be to rephrase the motion 
along with the third bullet point about amending the land management plan.  
 
Mr. Brown said Ms. Derr and Mr. Grant are not far off.  He believes the intent of 
the original motion was to have the Operations Planning Committee recommend to 
the full Board to consider an ordinance that implements option three.   
 
Mr. Grant removed his objection with the understanding of what Mr. Brown just 
said.  
 
Ms. Derr withdrew her motion and restated. 
 
MOTION By MS. DERR:  TO GO WITH OPTION THREE TO AMEND 85.02.063 
TO LEVERAGE THE CBJ LAND MANAGEMENT PLAN AND MOVE THAT 
TO THE FULL BOARD FOR REVIEW AND ASK UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion passed.  

 
2.  Proposed Change to 05 CBJAC 25.060 - Summer management [Statter Harbor] 
Mr. Uchytil said this was put on the agenda to see if the Board wanted changes to this 
regulation.  This is on page 22 in the packet and the changes are indicated in red. The 
changes are to encourage turn over.  The new changes will assess daily fees after 10 days 
if you have not moved.    
 
Committee Questions 
Ms. Derr asked if it includes the language that the vessel needs to move on its own 
power.  
 
Mr. Uchytil said yes.   
 
Mr. Leither said he likes this idea in general but wanted to know what the penalty is now 
if you do not move your boat? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said the management would be a financial incentive to move and not just 
receiving letters. 
 
Mr. Leither verified there is no financial incentive now? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said correct. 
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 7 of 18 

Ms. Smith said she has had some tough question with the public and we all know it is 
very crowded in Statter but some boats are given special treatment and everyone knows 
the big tug that has not moved in a long time. The public has this perception that the ones 
that do not have to move are friends with the Harbormaster.  There was ugly accusation 
over this weekend that she is not sure how to address.  Should we take the freedom of the 
Harbormaster to determine what vessels need to follow the ten day rule?  She would like 
guidance on how to address these questions. 
 
Mr. Etheridge said he talked to staff and they are trying to get the non-moving vessels to 
move but they have nothing in our ordinance to make them move.  The only thing staff 
can do is send letters and there has not been an incentive for them to move.  This change 
will now give an incentive for a person to move and not ignore the letters.  The 
Harbormaster is not just letting them stay because they are good buddies.   
 
Ms. Smith said adding this penalty she does not believe this will be an incentive to move. 
If we have rules that people decide they are not going to follow and there is nothing we 
can do about it than why do we have the rules and if we are going to add an incentive it 
should be a painful incentive for them not to follow the rules. 
 
Mr. Etheridge said vessels the size of the big tug boat will probably be over $1,000 a 
month and that will have them think twice about doing it again.  
 
Mr. Grant said it becomes a great incentive once the cost is raised up and then a non-
payment of Harbor fees is a reason to kick out a patron.  This is a good place to start.  
Where did the six hours being out of the Harbor come from and not a longer period of 
time. 
 
Mr. Uchytil said he thinks it is just an arbitrary time.   
 
Mr. Etheridge said originally it was overnight.  The argument was they can be gone for 
the day out fishing and come back and find a spot.  The Board at the time went with the 
six hours for the time spent out fishing in a day.    
 
Mr. Larkin said in this proposed wording he does not see they will move.  If the idea is to 
get them to move, there needs to be additional wording that they still have to move even 
being charged the higher fees.         
   
Mr. Uchytil commented that pointing to a rate we already have in place is more efficient 
for staff.  Once you go to a fee or a fine there are more challenges.   
 
Mr. Grant pointed out the word in the red should be “assessed” and not “accessed”.  
 
Mr. Ridgway commented if this is not adequate, the Harbormaster would contact the 
Board and we would go through this process again.  This is an interim approach. 
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 8 of 18 

Public Comment - None 
 
Committee Discussion/Action 
Ms. Derr said she is in favor of assessing the daily fees in 05 CBJAC 20.070 in addition 
to until your vessel moves.   
 
MOTION By MR. ETHERIDGE:  MOVE TO FORWARD THE FEE PROPOSAL 
IN 05 CBJAC 25.060 TO THE FULL BOARD FOR ACTION AND ASK 
UNANIMOUS CONSENT.  
 
Mr. Leither objected for discussion.  He said he supports this but his caveat is to hot 
berth the empty reserved spots and that will take pressure off the rest of the 
Harbor.  All the side ties can cause safety issues.  
Mr. Leither removed his objection. 
 
Motion passed. 
  
3.  Regulation/Ordinance Change  
Mr. Uchytil said on page 23 in the packet are the latest regulation changes.  If passed 
tonight this will go to the Board next week for approval.  There were slight changes not 
in the packet but provided on a separate page.  
 
Mr. Brown said ordinances are supposed to address a single subject and when this came 
to us the vessel registration and domestic animals were together.  Added to the domestic 
animal ordinance was the requirement to clean up after the dog.  Both are now ready to 
go to the full Board for recommendation.  The Harbor summer management incurring 
daily fees should be rolled in the draft with the summer management regulation change 
which is in the regulation packet being proposed.   
 
Committee Questions 
Mr. Ridgway asked if there can be language added to say any Docks & Harbors owned 
property so it can include parking lots and walkways and not just the float structure. 
 
Mr. Brown said if that needs to be further refined that can happen.  There is no 21 day 
notice on this.  This is forwarded onto the Assembly and the manager introduces it and 
then there are public notices for that.    
 
Ms. Smith said we do not seem to enforce animals being leashed even though there are 
signs and humans leaving animal waste on the dock.  If we make these changes are we 
going to enforce this? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said staff has written tickets for people not picking up after their dog but he 
does not have a good answer.  If staff sees a violation they should cite that individual.   
This is guidance the Harbormaster would like to amend moving forward. 
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 9 of 18 

Mr. Grant wanted to be clear that this is not just for the docks and ramps but Harbor 
wide.  In one sentence it reads “while on the dock” he wants that to be more Harbor wide.   
 
Mr. Brown said if this Committee supports the concepts to the full Board there can be a 
revised version taken into account the recommendation being made by that meeting.    
 
Public Comment - None 
 
Committee Discussion/Action 
Mr. Larkin recommended in 05 CBJAC 07.010 the inactive vessel management to strike 
the middle sentence that specifies the specific areas, (east side of the head float in 
Aurora) and leave the sentence that says there are certain areas, and you can have a map 
of those areas in the harbor offices.  By striking that it allows the staff in the future to 
make changes to that area as needed without having to go back and change the regulation.   
 
Ms. Derr said having this regulation gives other CBJ Departments the ability to write 
tickets as well.    
 
Mr. Brown said he talked to Mr. Creswell about the certain area and he agreed to leave 
the specific area in.  
 
Mr. Ridgway asked if the motion in the packet was made we could still slightly change 
some of the language before it goes to the full Board? 
 
Mr. Brown said everything being discussed with changes is just word smithing and fine 
tuning.   
 
MOTION By MR. ETHERIDGE:  TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD 
COMMENCE THE REQUISITE 21 DAY PUBLIC NOTICE PERIOD WITH 
PROPOSED REGULATION & ORDINANCE CHANGES AND ASK 
UNANIMOUS CONSENT.  

 
 Motion passed.  
 

4.  Hansen-Gress Building Improvement Challenges 
Mr. Uchytil said this item starts on page 32 in the packet.  There was a meeting held 
today at CDD with the Hansen & Gress building representatives.  The document on page 
32 was prepared by a CDD planner and on the top of page 34 it states that a variance will 
not be an option due to the lot line concerns.  The plausible outcomes could be that the 
Board elects to purchase their property and do a lot consolidation.  The Board agrees to 
sell property or the Board takes no action and leave Hansen & Gress to pursue other 
options. 
   
Committee Questions 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 10 of 18 

Mr. Ridgway said on the bottom of page 33.  Non-Conforming Situation – CBJ CDD 
recommends that the owners of the structure at 1000 Harbor Way acquire a Non-
Conforming Certification in order to maintain the existing condition of the property. He 
asked what that means? 
 
Mr. Schaal said this has to do with the historical nature of the building.  It is out of 
compliance with today’s zoning requirements.  It is waterfront commercial zoning and 
mostly water dependent uses need to be associated with it.  This is semi-water dependent 
use so CDD is satisfied with the currently non-water dependent use as an office space to 
apply for this non-conforming certification which cleans up some of the current uses for 
the zoning of this facility. It will make it a non-issue for the rest of the consideration for 
this project. 
 
Mr. Ridgway said even though CDD says this is non-conforming, that does not say the 
Planning Commission cannot grant it.  Can Hansen & Gress go before the Planning 
Commission and be granted permission to move forward with their project? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said he understands CDD would not recommend advancing something to the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Schaal said if CDD staff does not feel comfortable moving this to the Planning 
Commission, that is a huge hurdle but if it did go to the Planning Commission and staff 
wrote that they do not support this, they are quasi-judicial and very limited to what code 
says.  They do not get to make emotional decisions.   
 
Mr. Ridgway said the way he reads the outcome is they were asking for lot consolidation 
and not just improvements to their building.   
 
Mr. Uchytil said this was written before the pre-application conference and the merits of 
the application were not discussed line by line.   
 
Mr. Schaal said the Planning Director directed Mr. Peterson to put this together based on 
her understanding of the application.  The director may have put this together from what 
was going to be possible and through Mr. Peterson the only way this application was 
going to be eligible was by lot consolidation.   
 
Ms. Derr said she is not seeing our question to CDD.  We have it written in ordinance 
that Docks & Harbors is not supposed to get rid of tideland and now they are telling us 
there is nothing we can do to let Hansen & Gress put siding on their building.    
 
Mr. Uchytil said the only thing that can be done is a lot consolidation with a purchase and 
sales agreement.  If you look on page 34, they can do all the work they want inside and 
window and siding but any deck or canopy or anything protruding from the building 
would not be acceptable. 
   



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 11 of 18 

Mr. Etheridge asked if there was an appeal process for this?      
  
Mr. Brown said Hansen & Gress would need to go through some more administrative 
remedies before being in a position to protest CDD decision.  This pre-application 
meeting took place due to Docks & Harbors wanting to make sure there was not any 
other way other than selling the property.  The owners at this point need to decide what 
they want to do next.   
 
Mr. Uchytil commented that if Docks & Harbors wanted to sell the property there could 
be language that CBJ would have first right of refusal to buy it back.  
 
Mr. Larkin asked if the whole reason they wanted to purchase the CBJ land was because 
the deck was going to be too close to the line?  
 
Mr. Schaal said it is at the property line now and any scaffolding or deck will be over the 
property line.  
 
Mr. Larkin asked if we could extend the lease on that side out farther, would that fix the 
problem? 
 
Mr. Hansen said there are three issues, the deck, awnings, and roof brow.  The additional 
lease area on the waterside would only address the deck.   
 
Public Comment - None 
 
Committee Discussion/Action 
Ms. Derr said getting rid of tidelands is really hard.  This is really frustrating but we are 
running out of options and she is in favor of hearing the options of selling the land with 
the caveat for the Seawalk access. 
 
Mr. Etheridge commented that he has a lot of problems with this.  With adding the caveat 
that we have first right of refusal, we have done this in the past for the boat shelters and 
every time this comes forward we have never had the funds to buy them back. That 
would be the concern with this property. There needs to be a lot more focus on CDD to 
get them deeper involved before he is willing to support selling this property.   
 
Mr. Larkin said if this was sold we could start a fund to buy land in the future.  Selling 
land should always be the last resort.  He can see nothing Docks & Harbors can do with 
this land except to continue to lease it.  We are not losing anything if this small piece of 
land is sold. 
Mr. Grant said his view is we do not sell tidelands.  He is not convinced one pre-planning 
meeting with CDD exhausts all the possibilities.  There are administrative steps the 
developer can take.  He is not opposed to considering a lease for the walkway and the 
other two things wanted for the building are not things to part with tidelands.  
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 12 of 18 

Mr. Ridgway said he would be willing to go to CDD with the Board Chair to find out all 
options for this project in detail.  
 
MOTION By MR. ETHERIDGE:  MOVE THIS TOPIC TO THE NEXT FULL 
BOARD MEETING AND FINISH DISCUSSION THERE AND ASK 
UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion passed.  
 
Break 7:20pm – 5 Minutes 
 
Back in session – 7:26 
5.  Clean Vessel Act (CVA) – Amending Cooperative Agreement with ADFG 
Mr. Schaal said we are eligible to receive almost $10,000 more from the ADFG.  
Originally is was a 75/25 match with a total of $100,000.  This was split between the 
Harris and Statter Harbor pump out projects. We were able to come in under budget for 
the Harris pump out project because it was all done in house.  The left over money was 
transferred to the Statter project. In the whole grant, ADFG said they had left over money 
and we are in need of more money so if the Board agrees to want to send this through the 
Assembly process we could accept these funds and add to the Statter Harbor project.       
 
Committee Questions 
Mr. Grant said if the $31,000 match has already been provided? 
 
Mr. Schaal said yes. 
  
Ms. Smith asked if any of the money will go toward getting the second pump out station 
in Statter working? 
 
Mr. Schaal said it is now operational. 
 
Mr. Ridgway asked if this ties our hands in anyway. 
 
Mr. Schaal said there are rules already in place but nothing out of normal. 
 
Public Comment - None 
 
Committee Discussion/Action 

 
MOTION By MR. ETHERIDGE:  TO AMEND EXISTING COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT WITH ADFG TO RECEIVE AN ADDITIONAL $9,562.63 IN 
CLEAN VESSEL ACT GRANT FUNDING FOR THE STATTER HARBOR 
PUMP OUT PROJECT AND ASK UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion passed with no objection. 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 13 of 18 

 
6.  Assembly Resolution in support of Juneau District Heating  
Mr. Uchytil said last month we put together a resolution reassuring Alaska Department of 
Fish & Game that we would be supportive of their requirements at the NOAA Docks 
should that property be conveyed to CBJ.  Now Juneau District Heating wants similar 
assurance should they develop their needs, the City will work with them so they could be 
successful with the vision they have.    
 
Committee Questions 
Mr. Becker asked for the timeline for this? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said Senator Sullivan entering this property conveyance is his top priority.  
 
Mr. Grant asked who are the customers for the heating district? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said the customer would be the SOB and Capital building.  
 
Mr. Schaal commented it would also be the Willoughby district.  
 
Mr. Uchytil said the urgency is to get this before the Assembly at their August 1st 
meeting. CBJ Law has not seen this yet. 
 
Mr. Leither asked committing to allowing a different organization through this area 
seems like a different step than finding a space for a boat? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said they indicated they would have a sub-surface pipe. There will still be a 
need for an easement from the Harbors but we do not want to put hurdles in front of a 
company that will provide clean renewable energy. 
 
Ms. Hart said she wanted to remove herself from voting on this topic.     
 
Public Comment - None 
 
Committee Discussion/Action 
Mr. Uchytil said the Assembly has written letters of support for this project.  
 
MOTION By MR. ETHERIDGE:  TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF 
RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS OF JUNEAU 
DISTRICT HEATING ACROSS CBJ CONTROLLED PROPERTIES AND ASK 
UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Mr. Grant objected to ask if there is any reason why the other entities that are 
pursuing similar projects are not included in this resolution? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said he does not know but they are all the same entities. 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 14 of 18 

 
Mr. Schaal said they just have different LLC’s. 
 
Mr. Grant withdrew his objection 
 
Motion passed. 

 
IX. Items for Information/Discussion 

 
1. Goldbelt, Inc Seadrome Development Plan 
Mr. Steve Sahlender, Goldbelt VP of Alaska Group showed a power point presentation 
which are added to the minutes.   
 
Committee Discussion 
Mr. Etheridge asked what the timeline is for this? 
 
Mr. Sahlender said we would have someone come in and survey the land, assess the land, 
assess the costs then there would be another presentation of value versus value.  The first 
step will be a survey and appraisal.  This presentation is a preliminary to get to that point.  
This Board will need to let Goldbelt know they like the concept of the idea and support 
moving forward and we will need to know that sooner than later.  
 
Mr. Etheridge wanted to know if Goldbelt was just looking for support from this Board at 
this time? 
 
Mr. Sahlender said yes at this time.   

 
Ms. Smith commented that we would be losing waterfront footage in the presentation and 
asked to talk about that.   
 
Mr. Sahlender said initially CBJ will, but in the final phase, CBJ will gain it back when 
the Seawalk goes in which is illustrated on page seven of the slides.  
 
Mr. Ridgway would like to get an idea what the request will be for the Board.   
 
Mr. Sahlender said Goldbelt’s first action item would be the exchange of property but 
you cannot just exchange property for property but need to do an evaluation through an 
appraisal process.  The ask from the Committee to move this to the Board was that the 
Committee looks at the long range plan of what we are trying to achieve and that there is 
fair and equitable exchange of property and real property as well as floats.  The ask 
would be to support an appraisal and someone coming in to determine the values of the 
different parcels.  This presentation is information but maybe if we could get on the next 
Operations meeting as an action item and decide at that time if it were to move forward to 
the full Board. This is fair and supports all plans to date.   
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 15 of 18 

Mr. Ridgway asked why Goldbelt chose an even land exchange? 
 
Mr. Sahlender said the even land exchange created the footprint needed for the building 
and the ask is simpler.  We are not taking, but reorganizing.  With the current property 
lines the parcels are unusable and we also want to have a good working relationship with 
Docks & Harbors and Goldbelt wants this beneficial for all parties involved.  

 
Mr. Uchytil asked Mr. Sahlender when the Board needs to say this is a viable project and 
to start the process to move forward.  
 
Mr. Sahlender requested to bring this back to the next Operations Committee as an action 
item to move to the full Board.  If approved he could present at the Board and he would 
also need to take back to his Board.  His Board meets every month.  The sooner the better 
with the approvals and then we can start to get better timelines. 
 
Mr. Uchytil said we do have a term contractor for appraisal and if the Board approved we 
could start that process.  
 
Mr. Sahlender said we do not want to get to a point that CBJ owes Goldbelt money or 
Goldbelt owes CBJ money.  Goldbelt wants to get to the point to start breaking ground 
and we have the funds to do that now.   
 
Mr. Ridgway requested to add this to the next and future Operations Committee meeting 
agendas until this is figured out.  
 
Ms. Hart asked if there is a need to move this forward to the full Board. 
 
Mr. Ridgway said there will be no action tonight being under information items.  
 
Public Comment –  
Mr. Kirby Day, Juneau, AK 
Mr. Day asked about the DOT crosswalk in front of the Seadrome that is kind of in a 
weird place.  He said he would like the in and out to this facility addressed with the 
location of the crosswalk considered. How is the berthing space with this project 
compared to the CBJ Small Cruise Ship plan? 
 
Mr. Uchytil said MRV took what PND proposed and added the same layout to the 
proposal tonight.  
 
The MRV representative (Zane Jones) said there was consideration for the crosswalk and 
the in and out to this building.  It was all cleaned up. 
Mr. Uchytil commented that we are going to continue our efforts to secure the NOAA 
dock but what if we fail.  Would Goldbelt build the building without the other 
development? 
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 16 of 18 

Mr. Sahlender said yes. 
 

2. Aurora Harbor Phase III – Proposed Layout, there was a presentation starting on page 
61 in the packet.  
Mr. Schaal said the master plan was updated in 2015.  There was a change at that time to 
only have four floats instead of five.    The north approach dock was extended to 
accommodate for the shallow area and boat slips sizes were changed.  The north slips 
were removed by staff so the Army Corps could come in and dredge both Harris, Aurora 
and Douglas and we did not want them to dredge around the old floats.  Aurora Harbor 
was dredged to -14 feet and -16 feet.  The corner has a shallow area due to bedrock issue.  
Phase I proposal is to build out the headwalk and the configuration on page 65 of the 
packet.  The 24’ foot size slips are not put back into this plan but the larger slips are 
added to provide the space for the vessels on the waitlist.    
 
Committee Discussion 
Mr. Etheridge asked for the timeline to build this out? 
 
Mr. Schaal said staff has a goal to design in-house and have in time to apply for the next 
ADOT grant.  
 
Mr. Etheridge asked if the section being discussed right now can be completed with the 
ADOT money now? 
 
Mr. Schaal said yes. 
 
Mr. Ridgway recommended to bring this back for an action item and asked Committee 
members to review the plans. 
 
Ms. Derr commented she has heard patrons want a premium harbor and would pay for 
that.  Has there been design for a premium harbor and it was shown it would not pencil 
out? 
 
Mr. Schaal recommended to have bullet points on what makes a premium harbor.   
 
Mr. Ridgway said if there needs to be a motion at the next Operations Committee 
meeting to look into the extra expense for a premium harbor we can do that.  This has 
been discussed in the past and he is not sure if it is worth doing.   
 
Mr. Uchytil said we are resource limited and we have $4M.  If the Board says they want 
something specific, those are things that can be done if they are identified soon enough.  
What does the Board want to weigh in on? We can bring this back next week and talk 
about the plan some more.  In reviewing the Comp Plan earlier in the meeting, he 
discovered in 5.9 Implementing Action 5.9, it says evaluate methods for shore side 
security without using fencing or security gates on CBJ owned Docks & Harbors and 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 17 of 18 

recreational facilities. Mr. Uchytil said gates have been talked about but this is embedded 
in the Comp Plan.  
  
Mr. Ridgway commented this information is for decision making and this Board has a lot 
of latitude.  He always wants to make sure we are on the right path.  This is a big step and 
he would like to see this again at the Board meeting.   
 
Mr. Grant commented there could be some push back from the public losing a lot of the 
32’ slips. 
 
Mr. Larkin commented the easy answer to that would be the depth of the water.  
 
Ms. Smith said she would like to see at least some of the extras that people have asked 
for addressed.  She would like it shown that if certain items are added it would add X 
more to the project and would need to increase rates to X.  It is not unreasonable to add 
some of the things people have been asking for.      
 
Public Comment – None 
 
Ms. Smith left the meeting 8:55pm 
 
3. Dock Electrification Study - Update 
Mr. Schaal said we will be taking this study to the Assembly Committee of the Whole on 
August 8th. Staff has been working through the public comments and making a matrix 
that outlines the comments received and what we did with them.  This is almost 
complete.  We have a modified updated draft that has answered questions or corrected 
minor discrepancies in details about whose facilities are called what.  Mr. Haight put 
together a small memo that answered the larger questions that will be brought to the 
Board next week to look at and be placed on the website and placed in the Assembly 
packet.   
 
Committee Discussion - None 

 
Public Comment - None 
 
4.  Preparation for Docks & Harbors Annual Board Meeting (July 28th, 2022) 
Mr. Uchytil said next week is the annual Board meeting and wanted to have the members 
be thinking about nominations.  The By-Laws are in the packet so they can be also 
reviewed before the meeting next week.   Assignments to sub-committees should also be 
thought about.   
 
Committee Discussion 
Mr. Ridgway asked if the Board is required to have a Finance Committee? 
 



CBJ DOCKS & HARBORS BOARD 
OPERATIONS/PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 
 

Page 18 of 18 

Mr. Uchytil commented that the Board has a standing Finance Committee in the By-
Laws.  The Chair can assign a sub-committee that is less than the full body. 
  
Public Comment - None 
 

X. Staff & Member Reports 
Mr. Uchytil commented that the boat sank in Statter Harbor just earlier tonight is raised 
already. 

 
XI.    Committee Administrative Matters 
  

1. Next Operations/Planning Committee Meeting-Wednesday, August 17th, 2022 
 
XII. Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 9:03pm 



















A R C H I T E C T S
M R V

A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022

A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022

A R C H I T E C T S
M R V

0.111 ACRES

0.017 ACRES

0.146 ACRES

0.230 ACRES

0.022 ACRES
0.043 ACRES

0.112 ACRES

0.092 ACRES

OWNER

GOLDBELT INC.

CBJ DOCKS & HARBOR

COLOR

0.030 ACRES

PROJECT 
NORTH

ACTUAL 
NORTH

July 2022

0.111 ACRES

0.017 ACRES

0.095 ACRES

0.230 ACRES

0.022 ACRES

0.020 ACRES

0.112 ACRES

0.092 ACRES

OWNER

GOLDBELT INC., EXISTING

GOLDBELT INC., NEW

COLOR

CBJ DOCKS & HARBOR, EXISTING

0.030 ACRES

0.023 ACRES

0.051 ACRES

CBJ DOCKS & HARBOR, NEW

10' SETBACK

PROJECT 
NORTH

ACTUAL 
NORTH



A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022

CBJ PUMP BLDG.

PROPOSED NEW
PROP. LINE.

EXTG. PROPERTY 
LINE

SEADROME 
BLDG.

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

7,248.5 SQFT

CBJ

A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022

A R C H I T E C T S
M R V

N

July 2022
A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022



A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022

A R C H I T E C T S
M R V

K

July 2022

A R C H I T E C T S
M R VJuly 2022


	Ops Minutes 072022
	For Wednesday, July 20th, 2022

	presentation attachment
	Goldbelt Briefing 20220719 attachment

